



## UNOFFICIAL COPY

### ARTICLE IV - GOVERNING BODY

**Section 1** - The ASSA shall be governed by the officers and delegates elected by the members of the ASSA and the committee chairpersons appointed by the President and approved by the Student Council. This shall comprise the "Student Council." The "Executive Council" is composed of the officers and committee chairpersons and shall meet weekly, unless otherwise directed by the Faculty Advisor(s) or President.

**Section 2** - The Student Council shall have power to **(a)** elect such officers as are not provided for in this Constitution, **(b)** make other bylaws, rules and all necessary and proper regulations for carrying into effect powers conferred upon the group by the Constitution, **(c)** approve the appointments of standing committees, and **(d)** regulate the conduct and practices of all clubs and societies of the Student Body, as provided for in the Bylaws, Article VI, Section 1.

**Section 3** - The Student Council shall be composed of delegates from each department in which apprentices are trained. Each department shall have one delegate and one alternate for every ten, or part thereof, apprentices in that department. These shall be elected by popular vote within their respective departments. If the allotted seats per department are not filled by this election process, the Lead Craft Instructor for each department shall appoint delegates. Delegates shall be elected (or appointed) in November and shall assume their duties on January 1st to serve continuously until December 31st of that same year.

### ARTICLE V – FACULTY ADVISOR(S)

**Section 1** – The Faculty Advisor(s) advises the President and the Executive Council on financial matters and oversees the spending of and charging to the annual budget. The Faculty Advisor(s) supports the leadership development of the Executive Council and has authorization to sign contracts that the Executive Council members negotiate for events.

### ARTICLE VI - OFFICERS

**Section 1** - The officers of the ASSA, in order of succession, shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. There shall be a Faculty Advisor(s) for the Student Council, or an alternate appointed by the Student Services Administrator.

**Section 2** - The President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer shall serve during the fiscal year and shall be elected at large in the annual election.

**Section 3 - *The President*** - The President shall be elected by the members of the ASSA in the annual election. The President is responsible for ensuring all elected officers, as well as the Committees established by the Constitution, Article VII, Sections 2 – 9 and any Committees created by the Student Council in accordance with the Constitution, Article VII, Section 10, are doing their jobs and representing The Apprentice School in a professional manner. He/she shall also attend and/or speak at any functions or key events as requested by Faculty and as availability allows.

**Section 4 - *The Vice President*** - The Vice President shall be elected by the members of the ASSA in the annual election. The Vice President's responsibility will be to ensure order or to appoint an individual in that capacity during the Student Council meeting, and to ensure that the Bylaws are being followed by every individual involved with the ASSA. He/she shall also be responsible for all ASSA procedural compliance, for organizing Judicial Review boards, and for attending functions or key events as needed in the President's stead and as availability allows

**Section 5 - *The Secretary*** - The Secretary shall be elected by the members of the ASSA in the annual election. The Secretary shall be responsible for taking minutes at each monthly Student Council meeting and at the weekly Executive Council meetings. The Secretary shall start each meeting with the reading of the minutes from the previous meeting to ensure accuracy and agreement with the minutes. He/she shall also create, with input from the President, agendas for the meetings.

## UNOFFICIAL COPY

**Section 6 - *The Treasurer*** - The Treasurer shall be elected by the members of the ASSA in the annual election. The Treasurer shall review all expenditures and shall provide a report on the financial condition of the ASSA at each Student Council meeting. The Treasurer shall have a monthly meeting with the Student Services Administrator or his/her appointed representative and report the ASSA financial conditions to the Executive Council at the first weekly meeting of each month. He/she (with help from the Faculty Advisor(s)) will also be responsible for the semi-annual inventory of the ASSA assets as noted in the Constitution, Article III, Section 1.

**Section 7** - The annual election shall be held by the end of August.

### **ARTICLE VII – COMMITTEES**

**Section 1** - The Executive Council shall be composed of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and the chairpersons of all standing committees. During intervals between meetings of the Student Council, the Executive Council shall have, and may exercise, all the powers of the Student Council in matters pertaining to the best interests of the Student Body. All actions taken by the Executive Council shall be subject to approval or reversal by the Student Council in their next regular meeting. The members of the Executive Council shall act only as a committee and the individual members shall have no power as such.

**Section 2 - *The Athletics Committee*** will be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the committee chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Athletics Committee shall act in an advisory capacity for all athletic activities, and shall be active in securing fellow students to aid in the promotion of such activities. This committee shall be responsible for purchasing all food and beverages for home games and other specified events, as well as for the setup, sale and breakdown of home game concessions.

**Section 3 - *The Publications Committee*** shall be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Publications Committee shall be responsible for the writing, editing, publishing and distribution of all student publications, such as The Builder Bulletin, a monthly Apprentice newsletter.

**Section 4 - *The Activities Committee*** shall be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the committee chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Activities Committee shall be responsible for the planning and execution of all student social activities other than athletic events.

**Section 5 - *The Class Committee*** shall be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Class Committee shall be responsible for assisting in the election of all class officers, keeping track of the point system, maintaining accurate attendance records for all meetings, and assisting with Graduation ceremonies.

**Section 6 - *The Yearbook Committee*** shall be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Yearbook Committee shall be responsible for editing, writing, publishing, distribution and photography for the yearbook, with the aid of the Faculty Advisor(s).

**Section 7 – *The Bylaws Committee*** shall be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Bylaws Committee shall attain a superior knowledge of the ASSA Constitution and Bylaws, assure the Constitution and Bylaws are being followed, and review and propose changes to the Constitution and Bylaws as provided for in the Bylaws, Article X.

**Section 8 – *The Public Relations Committee*** shall be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Public Relations Committee shall be responsible for planning and executing all charitable events.

## UNOFFICIAL COPY

**Section 9** - The Communications committee shall be composed of a chairperson, an assistant chairperson appointed by the chairperson, and the delegates that are serving on the committee. The committee chairperson shall be appointed by the President and confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. The Communications committee shall be responsible for advertising all events and activities, as well as for getting information about events to the proper publications that may run an article.

**Section 10** – The eight committees defined under this article are regular standing committees that are present under every administration. At any time during the term, additional committees may be established. They must first be approved by a majority vote of the Student Council. If approved, the President will appoint a chairperson to be approved by a majority vote in Student Council. The chairperson will appoint an assistant chairperson. A committee will be responsible for considering, investigating, taking action on, and reporting on all business assigned to that committee.

### ARTICLE VIII - FINANCE

**Section 1** - A change in the amount of dues may be proposed by a majority vote of the Student Council and submitted to the Student Services Administrator for review. Upon approval, the change shall be voted upon by the members of the ASSA. The current amount of dues is 1%, and the dues are allocated between the ASSA and The Apprentice School Athletics Department, as well as other organizations as authorized by the Manager, Athletics and Student Services.

**Section 2** - All dues allocated within the ASSA's budget account and other receipts and the disbursements of funds of the ASSA shall be under the direction of the Student Services Administrator, or his/her representative, whose actions shall be subject to the review of the Student Council and the Student Services Administrator.

**Section 3** – The Student Services Administrator or his/her appointed representative shall prepare a monthly statement showing the financial condition of the ASSA. These monthly statements shall be available for inspection by any member of the ASSA upon request.

---

## BYLAWS OF THE APPRENTICE SCHOOL

### ARTICLE I - STUDENT COUNCIL MEMBERSHIP

**Section 1** - Membership in the Student Council shall cease when a delegate ceases to be a member of the School, unless the delegate submits a written request to the Student Services Administrator and the Student Council President to complete the term. If the delegate submits such a letter, he/she may complete the term provided that he/she remains employed with the department the delegate is representing, and that the request is approved by his/her department head.

When a vacancy on the Student Council occurs, an alternate shall be appointed by the Lead Craft Instructor to serve until the next general election. The opportunity to serve as an alternate shall be extended first to unsuccessful candidates listed on the ballot in the previous election, in order of number of votes received in the election. If no one is available from this list, an alternate shall be appointed by the Lead Craft Instructor with the recommendation of other apprentice instructors in the former Student Council member's department. Vacancies shall be filled by the Lead Craft Instructor by the next Student Council meeting (within 1 month). Records of elections shall be archived by the Class Committee.

## UNOFFICIAL COPY

**Section 2** - Candidates wishing to run for the office of delegate or other ASSA office must be apprentices when they take office.

**Section 3** - All candidates for the office of delegate must be informed of and agree to assume the duties involved with accepting a seat on the Student Council. The following list of duties shall be made available to all Lead and Craft Instructors for dissemination to potential delegates, and shall also be explained to new apprentices during orientation.

These duties are:

a. **Regular attendance of stated meetings** - A delegate who is absent (unplanned) from two or more Student Council meetings per trimester shall have his/her attendance reviewed by the Class Committee. For planned absences, delegates shall ensure arrangements are made (through the Faculty Advisor(s)) for an alternate to attend the meeting.

b. **Participation in committee affairs** - Each delegate will serve on a standing committee and failure to participate in that committee's business will result in Judicial Review.

c. **Participation in Student Council activities** - All delegates must conform to the point system outlined in Article VIII of the Bylaws.

**Section 4** - It is the Class Committee's responsibility to review the attendance records of all Student Council delegates. If a delegate cannot fulfill his/her obligations to the Student Council, he/she will be recommended to the Executive Council for Judicial Review. The Executive Council will then proceed in establishing the Judicial Review Board in accordance with Article IX of the Bylaws.

**Section 5A** - A committee chairperson or appointed officer can be removed from office if, in the judgment of the President and with the approval of the Faculty Advisor(s), his/her conduct is contrary to principles upon which the School and the Student Council operate.

**Section 5B** - An elected officer can be removed by a Special Judicial Review Board, as provided for in the Bylaws, Article IX, Section 6. Recommendations for this type of Review must come from the Executive Council or the Faculty Advisor(s).

**Section 5C** - Once a committee chairperson or elected official is removed by a Judicial Review, he/she cannot run for office or be appointed to a chairperson position without Faculty Advisor(s) recommendation and Executive Council approval.

## **ARTICLE II - NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS**

**Section 1** - Officers shall be elected in an annual election in August. Newly elected officers will assume office on January 1st. During the transition period officers-elect shall attend Executive Council meetings and selections of appointed positions should be made by December 1st.

**Section 2** - Nominations for President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer will be made by petition. Each petition must be signed by fifty active apprentices and submitted to the Faculty Advisor(s) to the Student Council by the date specified. In order to promote stability within the Executive Council, students submitting petitions must be Apprentices for the duration of the upcoming year.

**Section 3** - In the event that only one candidate seeks an office, that candidate will run unopposed. However, if no one seeks an office, nominations for that office will be made at the first stated meeting of the new term and the vacant office will be filled by a majority vote of the Student Council. Nominees must satisfy the criteria set forth in the Bylaws, Article II, Section 5.

**Section 4** - No candidate may seek office on a joint ticket with another candidate, but candidates may solicit votes for each other.

**Section 5 - Criteria for elected officials:** In order to run for election, The President, Vice-President, Secretary, and Treasurer must have served on the Student Council for at least one year. In keeping with the expectations set forth in Bylaws, Article 8, Section 3, elected officials must also have and maintain a G.P.A of 2.5 or better or have completed the academic portion of their apprenticeship. Individuals seeking office must also have an average shop grade of 80 or better. The Faculty Advisor(s) shall ensure that the criteria have been met before placing the individual on the ballot.

## UNOFFICIAL COPY

**Section 6** - Elections of officers will be held in the following manner: The candidates will prepare a short speech, introducing themselves to the Delegates at the Student Council meeting preceding the election. The ballots will be made available to all members of the ASSA at the annual election and then turned over to the Faculty Advisor(s) and the Executive Council. The ballots will remain sealed until counted under the supervision of the Faculty Advisor(s) and the Executive Council. In the event one or more Executive Council members are running for office, the Faculty Advisor(s) will appoint an alternate to fill their duties in counting the votes. No Student Council member running for office shall be present during the tallying process. Final results will be posted and announced as soon as possible after the election. All candidates will be notified in writing and verbally of the results. Current delegates who run for office and are not elected must still run for delegate within their respective department if they wish to continue to participate in the Student Council.

**Section 7** – All members of the ASSA shall be given an opportunity to vote in the annual election.

**Section 8A** - Election of delegates will be conducted as soon as possible in November. Results of the election must be submitted to the Faculty Advisor(s) as soon as possible. All apprentices except those on academic probation are eligible to seek the office of delegate. The Academic/Craft Instructors will issue a ballot to all apprentices. This ballot will be signed by each apprentice stating whether they are interested in becoming a delegate. These ballots will be received by the Faculty Advisor(s). The Faculty Advisor(s) will then separate the ballots by department. The names of apprentices who are interested in becoming delegates will be issued to each Apprentice Craft Instructor. Apprentices will be allowed to vote for the allotted number of candidates from his/her department. The candidates in each group with the most votes will be elected delegates. The number of delegates from each department will be determined by the size of that department as of October 1<sup>st</sup> each year.

**Section 8B** - Any member who will not be present during the voting period may request an absentee ballot prior to the election. This ballot must be returned to the Faculty Advisor(s) by close of business on Thursday of the voting week. Any member out of work or on an emergency status may request a special ballot, which will be a verbal vote given to the Faculty Advisor(s) and will be followed up by an absentee ballot signed by the apprentice.

**Section 9**- All newly elected delegates may be required to attend the December Student Council meeting. Discussion of unfinished business will be carried over to the new fiscal year. A special meeting may be held in January. A copy of the Bylaws and the Constitution will be made available to all members of the Student Council to be checked out upon request.

**Section 10** - If a matter arises and is deemed outside of the scope of Student Council powers as defined in the Constitution or Bylaws, a majority vote of the Student Council may call a special general election. Special elections will be held in the following manner. Two weeks prior to any vote, written information will be distributed explaining the purpose of the vote. The information will be distributed by Apprentice Lead and Apprentice Craft Instructors. A minimum of two days will be allowed for voting and the return of ballots to the Lead Apprentice Instructors. All ballots must be returned to the Manager, Craft Training & Admissions as soon as possible after the completion of the election. Ballots will be turned over to the Faculty Advisor(s) and will remain sealed until they are counted under the supervision of the Faculty Advisor(s) and the Executive Council. A two-thirds majority vote is required to approve a matter by special general election. Final results will be posted and announced as soon as possible after the election.

**Section 11** - The Faculty Advisor(s) shall act as the Executive Council's counselor in a non-voting capacity and shall assist the Executive Council as the need arises. The Faculty Advisor(s) shall remain neutral to all persons running in the elections. The Faculty Advisor(s) will only supervise and observe these events.

### **ARTICLE III – STUDENT COUNCIL MEETINGS**

**Section 1** – Regular Student Council meetings shall be held on the second Friday of each month.

**Section 2** – Twenty members constitute a quorum.

**Section 3** – If any change is necessary to the meeting schedule, the change will be ordered by the President with the consent of the Executive Council and the Faculty Advisor(s). Notifications of changed meeting dates shall be published through the Lead Apprentice Instructors.

**Section 4** – Unless otherwise provided for in the Constitution or Bylaws, a majority vote of those present shall determine the disposition of matters before the meeting.

**Section 5** – The presiding officer shall be the President or the next officer in attendance following the line of succession established in Article VI, Section 1 of the Constitution. If no elected officials are present, the Faculty Advisor(s) shall preside.

## UNOFFICIAL COPY

**Section 6** – The meetings will be conducted in accordance with Robert's Rules of Order (**See Attachment 1**). The Vice-President's responsibility will be to ensure order or to appoint an individual in that capacity.

### **ARTICLE IV – FINANCE**

**Section 1** – The fiscal year shall run from January 1 through December 31 of each year. An annual accounting of the ASSA's funds shall be presented to the Student Council at the regular March meeting of each year.

**Section 2** – The Executive Council, with the aid of the Faculty Advisor(s), shall prepare an itemized, annual operating budget proposal. The incoming President will present this budget to the Student Council no later than the February meeting. The Student Council must approve each expenditure item by a two-thirds majority vote.

**Section 3** – After initial approval of the annual operating budget, any delegate may propose modifications. A modification to the annual operating budget must be approved by a two-thirds majority of the Student Council.

### **ARTICLE V – COMMITTEES – DELETED (Provided for in Constitution)**

### **ARTICLE VI - GENERAL PROVISIONS**

**Section 1** - No club, association, or society shall be chartered unless the following procedure has been followed: (a) petition of interested apprentice submitted to the Faculty Advisor(s); (b) approval of Student Council; (c) final approval by the Student Services Administrator and the Director, Education & Workforce Development. Any club or organization that fails to function for a year, violates provisions of the Constitution, or violates rules for its own regulation as submitted with application for charter, shall forfeit its charter and right to exist. If a petition fails to be approved at any stage, it may not be submitted again prior to 90 days and may only be submitted a maximum of two times during a fiscal year.

**Section 2** - The President for the preceding year shall be an honorary member of the Student Council for the following year, to give advice when needed. They shall not have the power to vote on any business before the Council.

**Section 3** - At the time of completion, each apprentice has the option to continue to purchase ASSA-sponsored event tickets and admission tickets to Apprentice School sports events at the same price and under the same conditions as apprentices for the remainder of the fiscal year. Intent to exercise this option must be declared on the day of the completion meeting. The option is exercised by payment in full (by check) within seven days of the completion meeting for the dues remaining until the end of the fiscal year.

### **ARTICLE VII - PROCEDURES FOR**

### **HOMECOMING QUEEN ELECTIONS**

**Section 1** – All female apprentices except those on academic probation are eligible to be a contestant for Homecoming Queen. The Homecoming Court shall be comprised of a Queen and her attendants. The Queen will be elected by the ASSA and the attendants will be made up of the remaining contestants. The maximum number of attendants allowed will be 10. The election will be held in the following manner: (a) Prior to Homecoming, a notice will be issued in the newsletter requesting interested apprentices to pick up an application from the school. This notice will state the deadline for all applications to be submitted. (b) The Faculty Advisor(s) will prepare the ballot for the election consistent with the established format. (c) Ballots will be made available to all ASSA members during the annual election in August. (d) The ballots will be turned over to the Faculty Advisor(s) and will remain sealed until counted under the Faculty Advisor(s) supervision. (e) Finalists will be notified as soon as possible prior to Homecoming. (f) Those not selected will also be notified as soon as possible. (g) The Queen will be announced the day of the Homecoming.

**ARTICLE VIII - MERIT AWARDS PROPOSALS**

**Section 1** - President - receives gavel plaque and gavel used during the year.

Vice-President - receives plaque

Secretary - receives plaque

Treasurer - receives plaque

The above officers will receive an award at the discretion of the Faculty Advisor(s). The President will advise the Faculty Advisor(s) on the job performance of the other officers.

Athletic Chairperson - plaque

Activities Chairperson - plaque

Publications Chairperson - plaque

Class Chairperson – plaque

Yearbook Chairperson – plaque

Public Relations Chairperson – plaque

Bylaws Chairperson – plaque

Communications Chairperson - plaque

Chairperson(s) created per Constitution, Article VII, Section 10 - plaque

Upon the recommendation of the President and the agreement of the Faculty Advisor(s), the above chairpersons will receive an award. Special Awards may be presented by the President upon approval by the Faculty Advisor(s).

**Section 2** - Members of the Student Council will receive a merit award certificate for attending at least 9 out of 12 Student Council meetings and meeting the minimum requirements for receiving an invitation to the ASSA Banquet.

**NOTE:** The Class Committee will keep the attendance records and submit them to the Faculty Advisor(s) at the end of the last Student Council meeting.

**Section 3** - The Executive Council consists of elected officers and appointed chairpersons who are expected to be involved at a higher level than other delegates. An established awards system for officials and chairpersons is already given by Northrop Grumman Shipbuilding. If the Council agrees, an additional award from the ASSA may be given, but needs to be approved each year by the Council and the Faculty Advisor(s). This extra award must first be requested in writing to the Faculty Advisor(s) by the President at least three months prior to the end of the term. Thus, the officers and chairpersons would not be included in the point awards system. The Executive Council must be the point of contact at the designated number of events decided by the President at the beginning of the year. They must adhere to these rules, or be subject to Judicial Review.

**Section 4A - Point System**

Points will be awarded for a delegate's participation in the support of activities approved by the Student Council. Three points per hour will be awarded for signing up for and participating in any event sanctioned by the ASSA. Two points per hour will be awarded for participating without signing up.

A delegate who has volunteered for an activity is responsible for obtaining a replacement if he/she is unable to attend. Three negative points will be disbursed to any delegate who fails to meet his/her responsibility to attend or obtain a replacement for an event.

UNOFFICIAL COPY

**Section 4B - Point System**

Members of any active Student Council committees are eligible to earn up to fifteen points per trimester. These points cannot be used towards the 10 points needed to avoid Judicial Review. These points can only be used toward the 100 points needed to attend the Awards Banquet or to earn the Top Ten Delegate Award. Disbursement of points will be made by the respective committee chairpersons with approval of the Class Committee chairperson.

**Section 5 - Point System**

All athletes will be awarded fifteen points per trimester upon completion of their first sport, five upon completion of the second, and two upon completion of their third sport. Cheer/Dance team members and Drum Line members shall earn 3 points per hour for the games that they support.

**Section 6 - Point System**

1. Committee points may be accumulated in any trimester.
2. A Total of 100 points must be earned in order for a delegate to receive an invitation to the Awards Banquet.
3. The top ten point earners (counting all points earned) receive an ASSA logo watch or they may select a gift of their choice from a list of items provided by the Executive Council, not to exceed \$50.00.
4. All delegates must participate in the set-up or breakdown to receive points at events.
5. If a delegate is replaced, the new delegate is responsible to earn points based on the point system as follows:

<u>Jan</u>	<u>Feb</u>	<u>Mar</u>	<u>Apr</u>	<u>May</u>	<u>Jun</u>	<u>July</u>	<u>Aug</u>	<u>Sept</u>	<u>Oct</u>	<u>Nov</u>	<u>Dec</u>	<u>Committee Points</u>	<u>Total</u>
10			10				10					45	75
	7.5		10				10					45	72.5
		5	10				10					45	70
			2.5	10			10					45	67.5
				10			10					30	50
					7.5		10					30	47.5
						5	10					30	45
							2.5	10				30	42.5
								10				15	25
									7.5			15	22.5
										5		15	20
											2.5	15	17.5

6. To be removed from office a delegate must have a:
  - a. Review and recommendation by President plus Class Committee.
  - b. Review and recommendation by Judicial Review Board.
  - c. Review and recommendation by Faculty Advisor(s).
  - d. If above steps are approved, presentation to the Student Council by the President will occur and the delegate will be removed.

**ARTICLE IX - JUDICIAL REVIEW BOARD**

**Section 1 – Regular Judicial Review** - There will be 9 members on each review board. These members will be randomly selected by the Faculty Advisor(s) from a listing of all active Apprentice delegates in good standing. All delegates must be available to serve. Each selected member may request only one deferment from serving.

**Section 2** - Each member has one vote on all issues. The Faculty Advisor(s) will retain a veto of all decisions. If this veto is used, it may be overridden by a unanimous vote of the committee. If the veto is overridden, the case will be forwarded to the Student Services Administrator and the Director, Education & Workforce Development for a final verdict.

**Section 3** - A meeting of the Regular Judicial Review Board may be called whenever deemed necessary by the President or the Faculty Advisor(s).

**Section 4** - An accused individual shall be notified in writing and has the right to appear before the Judicial Review Board and present any evidence in his/her case. If the accused individual cannot be present, he/she may ask for only one postponement, or he/she may select an individual to represent them.

**Section 5** - The Review Board receives recommendations made by the President or Class Committee for removal of a delegate who fails to perform his/her job responsibilities and does not obtain his/her mandatory amount of points for the allotted time period.

**Section 6 – Special Judicial Review Board** - Special Judicial Review Boards will be comprised of the Faculty Advisor(s) and one Student Council member from every department represented (randomly selected by the Faculty Advisor(s)). The decision of this type of Review Board must be approved by a two-thirds majority vote. In the event that an elected officer is unable to complete his/her term in office (whether due to Special Judicial Review Board or personal decision), every elected officer beneath the vacated office will have the option to assume the next highest office, in accordance with the line of succession established in Article VI, Section I of the Constitution. The President will then appoint someone to fill the newly opened position, to be confirmed by a majority vote of the Student Council. Should the President's position remain unfilled, nominations will be made by the Student Council at the next regular delegate meeting and a majority vote by the Student Council will fill the position. Nominees must satisfy the criteria set forth in the Bylaws, Article II, Section 5.

**Section 7** - Any verdict (from either type of Review Board) may be appealed by the following steps:

- a. Within one week of receiving an official written notice, an appeal must be filed with the Faculty Advisor(s).
- b. This notice must include all reasons for the appeal.
- c. An answer on this request must be issued within two weeks of receiving the appeal.
- d. Approval or denial of any appeal must be issued by the Faculty Advisor(s) and the Student Services Administrator.

**ARTICLE X - AMENDMENTS**

**Section 1** - Amendments may be proposed by any member of the ASSA. The proposed amendments must be typed, dated, and presented to the Bylaws Committee.

**Section 2** - Proposed amendments that are presented to the Bylaws Committee must contain the following information: (a) the date the proposed amendment was presented to the Bylaws Committee; (b) the present wording of the article or the section to be changed; and (c) the name of the person who presented the proposed amendment.

**Section 3** - The proposed amendment must be presented to the Bylaws Committee at least two weeks before the next Student Council meeting. It will be the Bylaws Committee's responsibility to type the proposed amendment in a "before and after" format signed by the Student Services Administrator, and to present it to the delegates at the next Student Council meeting.

## UNOFFICIAL COPY

**Section 4** - When the proposed amendment is presented to the delegates, the Bylaws Committee Chairperson will give each delegate a copy of the proposed amendment and read the amendment to the delegates. Then the proposed amendment will be discussed. If the proposed amendment is in conflict with any other article or section of the Bylaws, or if fifty percent of the delegates object to the wording of the proposed amendment, it will be tabled. Once the proposed amendment is tabled, it must be rewritten by the Bylaws Committee and presented at the next Student Council meeting. If the proposed amendment is not tabled, a vote may be taken.

**Section 5** - Each section of an article that is to be changed must be voted on separately.

**Section 6** - A vote is valid if a quorum of 20 delegates is present. The vote can be taken by a show of hands or by written ballot. The vote is to be counted "For, against, abstained" - this count is to be included in the minutes. An amendment must be approved by a two-thirds majority vote of the Student Council.

**Section 7** - Once a proposed amendment has been passed by the voting procedure outlined in Article X, Section 6, it can be added to the current Bylaws pending the approval and signature of the Student Services Administrator and the Director, Education & Workforce Development. If the Student Services Administrator or the Director, Education & Workforce Development do not approve the proposed amendment, the originator of the amendment has the following options: (a) withdraw the amendment or (b) rewrite the amendment and resubmit to the Bylaws Committee as a new amendment.

**Section 8** - The official Constitution and Bylaws will have the official school seal and will be kept in the office of the Student Services Administrator. Each time the Bylaws are revised, they shall be marked to identify the official copy. Copies will be distributed to the following people: Director, Education & Workforce Development; Student Services Administrator; Manager, Academic Training; Manager, Craft Training & Admissions; Faculty Advisor(s), and all members of the Executive Council.

**Robert's Rules of Order**

These are the rules for Student Council discussion, set forth by the  
 Constitution and Bylaws of the Apprentice School Student Association.

<u>You Want:</u>	<u>You Say:</u>	<u>Interrupt?</u>	<u>2nd?</u>	<u>Debate?</u>	<u>Amend?</u>	<u>Vote?</u>
Bring business before the Council <b>(Main Motion)</b>	"I move that... <b>(Main Motion)"</b>	NO	YES	NO	NO	MAJORITY
Kill main motion	"I move to <b>kill the motion</b> "	NO	YES	YES	NO	MAJORITY
Modify wording of the motion	"I move to <b>amend the motion</b> "	NO	YES	YES	YES	MAJORITY
Close debate	"I move to <b>close debate</b> "	NO	YES	NO	NO	2/3
Reconsider motion	"I move to <b>reconsider</b> "	NO	YES	NO	NO	MAJORITY
Call for a <b>vote</b>	"I move to <b>vote on the motion</b> "	NO	YES	YES	N/A	N/A
Close meeting	"I move to <b>adjourn</b> "	NO	YES	NO	NO	MAJORITY
Enforce rules	<b>"Point of Order"</b>	YES	NO	NO	NO	NONE
Suspend rules	"I move to <b>suspend the rules</b> "	NO	YES	NO	NO	2/3